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Mr. Jeremy Nauert

Prirecter, Global H3E
Caolbond, Ing.

1301 Sand Hill Road

Enka, North Caroling 38728

RE:  Colbond, Ine.
Congent Agreeincent and Final Order
Daocket No. EPCRA-04-2012-2040(b)

Diear Mr. Nauert:

Encloscd please find an executed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order that resolves the
Emergency Planning and Commupity Right-to-Know Act of 1986 maticr (Docket No, EPCRA-04-2012-
2040(bY) invoiving Colbond, Inc. The CAFO was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by
40 CF.R. Part 22 and became effective on the date of the filing,

Also gnclosed, please find a copy of the “Notice of Securitivs and Exchange Commission Registrants’
Duty to Disclose Envirenmengal Legal Proveedings.” This document puis vou on notice of your
potential duty to disclose to the Security and Excharnge Cominission any environmental enforcement
actions taken by the Environmental Protection Agency, If vou have any guestions with regards to the
SEC’s environmental disclosurs requirements, you may refer to the contact phong number at the bottom
of the SEC Naetice,

If vou have any questions, pleasc call Ms. Mary Beech at (404 562-9669.
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CORSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

1. Nature of the Action

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency
Planning and Comununity Right-to-Know Act (EPURA), 42 U.S.C. § 11045, and pursuant 1o the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Admirdstrative Assessment of Civil Penaltics and

the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits {Consolidated Rules), codified at 40
C.F.R. Part 22. Complainart s the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management

Division, Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Respondent 1s

Colbond, Inc.
The authonity to take action under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 110485, is

2.
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority
under EPCRA to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation 22-3-A, dated May 11, 1994
The Regional Admmistrator, Region 4, has redelegaied this authority to the Director, Adr,
Pesticides and Toxies Management Dhvision, by EPA Region 4 Delegation 22.3-A, dated
November 8, 1994, Pursuant to that delegation, the Director of the Air, Pesticides and Toxics
Management Division has the authority fo commense an enforeement action as the Complainant

in this matter,
Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement

3
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18 and desire (o resolve this maiter and setile the sllegations
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or

testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issuc in this matter, and in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b) and 22.18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order

{CAFQO) will simultaneously commuonce and conclude this matier.

H. Preliminary $tatements

4, Respondent is Colbond, I, & corporation doing business in the state of North

Carolina.
Respondent s # "person” as defined in Scction 329(7) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C.

5.
§ 11049%(7),
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. Respondent owns and operates a "facility” as that tetm 18 defined by Section
25{4) of EPCRA, 42 US.C, § 11045(4).

7. Respondent’s facility i3 located at 1301 Sand Hill Road, Enka, North Carolina.
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8. Section 312 of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11022, and the regulations found at 40
C.F.R. Part 370, provide that the owner or operator of a facility that is required to prepare or
have available 1 Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for hazardous chemicals under the
Oceupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA}Y and regulations promulgated under that
Act, shall submit o the Local Emergency Planning Committee { LEPC), the State Emergency
Response Commission (SERC), and the fire department with hurisdiction over the facility on or
hefore March | annuslly, a completed emergency and hazardous chemical inventory form {(Tiert
or Tier 11} as described in 40 C.F.R. Part 370, containing the information required by that part for
hazardous chemicals present at fhe facility at any one time in the calendar year tn amounts equal
to or greater than 10,000 pounds and containing the Information required by that part for
extremely hazardous substances (BHS) prosent at the facility at any one time in amounts equal to
or greater than the threshold planning quantity (TPQ) or 500 pounds, whichever is less.

9. At some time during the calendar years of 2010, 2009 and 2008, formaldehyde
was present at the Colbond, Inc. facility in an amount equal to or greater than 500 pounds.

10, Formaldehvde is an "extremely hazardous substance” as defined under Section
3293) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11049(3), for which Respondent is required to prepare or have
available an MSDS under OSHA at its facility.

11.  Respondent failed to submit a completed Emergency and Hazardous Chemical
Inventory Form for formaldehyde to the SERC, the LEPC, and fire department with jurisdiction
over the facility for calendar years of 2010, 2009 and 2008, by March 1 of the following year.

12, EPA alleges that Respondent violated the reporting requirernents of Section 3i2
of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11022, at the Colbond, Inc. facility for calendar vears of 2010, 2008 and
2008, and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under Scction 325 of EPCRA, 42
US.C § 11045,

13. Pursuant 1o Section 325(¢) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11043(¢), and 40 C.F.R. Part
19, EPA may assess a penalty of not more than $37,500 for cach violation of Section 312 that
occurred after January 12, 2008, Each day a violation of Section 312 continues constituies a
separate violation. Civil penalties vnder Section 325{c) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11045{c), may
e assessed by Administrative Order,

V. Consent Apreement

4. For the purposcs of this CAFQ, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations
sef out above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set out above,
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15.  Respondent waives any right to contest the allegations and ifs right to appeal the
proposed final order accompanying the Consent Agreement,

16.  Respondent consents to the assesstient of and agrees to pay the civil penalty as
sct forth in this CAFO.

17.  Respondent certifies that os of the date of #s execution of this CAFQ, itisin
gamphance with all relevant requirements of EPCRA at the facility,

18.  Compliance with this CAFO shall resolve the allegations of viclations contained
herein. This CAFQ shall not otherwise affect any liahility of Respondent fo the United States
other than as expressed herein. Neither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an
enforcement action against Respondent for a violation of any federal or state statute, regulation
of permit; to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment; or to pursue criminal
enforcement.

19, Complainant and Respondent agree to setile thig maticr by their execution of this
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement of this matter 18 in the public interest and that this
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements of EPCRA.

Y. Fmal Order
20.  Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of THIRTEEN THOUSAND FOUR
HUNDRED FIFTY FIVE DOLLARS (313,455}, tor the violations alleged in Scction 111
Payment shall be paid within thirty {30) days of the effective date of this CAFQ.

21.  Respondent shall pay the penalty by forwarding a cashier’s or certified check,
payable to: "Treasurer, United States of America,” to one of the following addresses;

BY MAIL BY OVERNIGHT

US Environmental LS. Bank

Protection Agency Covernment Lockbox 979077 US
Fines and Penalties EPA Fines & Penaltics
Cincinnati Finance Ceater 1005 Convention Maza

P.O. Box 979077 SE-MOC2.GL

81 Louis, MO 63197-9000 S, Louis, MO 6310G1

{314y 4181028
The check shall reference on its fhace the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO,
22, Atthe time of payment, Respondent shall send s separate copy of the check, and a

written statement that payment has been made in accordances with this CAFQ, 1o the following
persons at the following addresses:



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

T hereby certify that [ have this day served a true and correct copy of the foregoing

Consent Agreement and Final Order, In the Matter of, Colbond, Ing,, Docket Number: EPCRA~

04-2012-2040(b}, on the partics listed below in the manner indicated:

Caran B. Faleconer (Via EPA’s internal mail}
U.S. EPA, Region 4

Air, Pesticides & Toxics Mansgement Divigion

61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30353

Robert Caplan {Via EPA’s internal mail}
U.S. EPA, Region 4

Office of Environmental Accountability

&1 Forsyth Sireet

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

Jeramy Nauert {Via Certified Mail - Return Receipt
Director, Global HSE Requested)

Colbond, ing.

1301 Sand Hili Read

Enka, North Carolinag 28728

vue = 1012

Patricia A, 8&1200 Regmrasﬁ Hemng Clerk
United States Environmental

Protection Agency, Region 4

Atlanta Federal Center

61 Forgyth Street, S.W.

Atlanta, GA 30303

{4043 5629511



